NOT A NEW ISSUE — BOOK-ENTRY ONLY

On the date of issuance of the Bonds, Balch & Bingham LLP (“Former Bond Counsel”) delivered its opinion with respect to the
Bonds described below to the effect that interest on such Bonds, as of the date of such opinion, was not includable in gross income
for federal income tax purposes under existing statutes, rulings and court decisions, and under applicable regulations and proposed
requlations, assuming the accuracy of certain representations and certifications and compliance with certain tax covenants made by
the Company and the County on the date the Bonds were issued, except for interest on any such Bond for any period during which
such Bond is held by a “substantial user” of the Project (as defined herein) or a “related person” as defined in Section 147(a) of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and would not be treated as an item of tax preference for purposes of calculating the
federal alternative minimum tax imposed on individuals and would not be included in the computation of adjusted current earnings
for purposes of calculating the alternative minimum tax on corporations. In the opinion of Nabors, Giblin & Nickerson, P.A. (“Bond
Counsel”), conversion of the interest rate on the Bonds as described herein will not adversely affect the exclusion from gross income
of the interest on such Bonds for purposes of federal income taxation, based on assumptions and subject to the limitations described
under “TAX MATTERS.” In the opinion of Former Bond Counsel, interest on such Bonds, as of the date of issuance thereof, was exempt
Jfrom present Florida taxation, except estate taxes and taxes imposed by Chapter 220, Florida Statutes, as amended, on interest,
income or profits on debt obligations owned by corporations as defined therein.

$65,000,000
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
Solid Waste Disposal Revenue Bonds
(Gulf Power Company Project),
First Series 2009

THE BONDS ARE LIMITED SPECIAL OBLIGATIONS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA (THE “COUNTY”) AND
ARE PAYABLE SOLELY FROM THE LOAN REPAYMENTS UNDER A PROMISSORY NOTE ISSUED PURSUANT TO A LOAN
AGREEMENT RELATED TO THE BONDS WITH:

Gulf Power-

Dated: Date of original issuance and delivery Due: April 1, 2039

Commencing November 19, 2020, the Bonds will bear interest from the Interest Accrual Date at a Daily Rate determined by the
Remarketing Agent as described under “THE BONDS—Interest on the Bonds” herein, payable on the fifth Business Day of each month. The
Bonds were initially issued pursuant to a Trust Indenture dated as of March 1, 2009 (the “Indenture”) between Escambia County, Florida
(the “County”) and U.S. Bank National Association, as successor trustee (the “Trustee”).

The Bonds are subject to optional and extraordinary optional redemption prior to maturity as described under “THE BONDS—
Redemption” herein. The Bonds are also subject to mandatory tender upon a change in interest rate determination method. When a Daily or
Weekly Rate is in effect for the Bonds, holders will have the option to tender their Bonds for purchase as described under “THE BONDS—
Optional Tender” herein.

Subject to satisfaction of certain conditions in the Indenture, the Company may from time to time change the method of determining the
interest rate on the Bonds to a Daily, Weekly, Commercial Paper, Long-Term or Index Rate as more fully described under “THE BONDS—
Change in Interest Rate Determination Method” herein. This Reoffering Circular does not describe the terms and provisions applicable to
the Bonds after the date they convert to accrue interest, as permitted by the Indenture, at interest rates other than the Daily Rate or the
Weekly Rate described herein.

The Bonds will be reoffered as fully registered bonds and will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of The Depository
Trust Company, New York, New York (“DTC”). DTC acts as securities depository for the Bonds. During any Daily or Weekly interest rate
period, the Bonds will be in denominations of $100,000 or any integral multiples thereof. Purchases will be made in book-entry form through
DTC participants and no physical delivery of Bonds will be made to purchasers, except as otherwise described in this reoffering circular
(this “Reoffering Circular”). Payments of principal of, premium, if any, on, purchase price of and interest on the Bonds will be made by
U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee and Paying Agent, to Cede & Co., as nominee for DTC, as registered owner of the Bonds, to be
subsequently disbursed to DTC participants and thereafter to the beneficial owners of the Bonds. See “THE BONDS — Book-Entry System.”

THE BONDS AND THE INTEREST THEREON SHALL NOT BE DEEMED TO CONSTITUTE A DEBT OR GENERAL
OBLIGATION OR A PLEDGE OF THE FAITH AND CREDIT OR TAXING POWER OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA OR ANY
POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF, INCLUDING THE COUNTY.

PRICE: 100%

This cover page contains certain information for quick reference only. It is not a summary of this reoffering. Investors must read the
entire Reoffering Circular to obtain information essential to making an informed investment decision.

The Bonds are reoffered subject to prior sale, when, as and if received by U. S. Bank Municipal Products Group, a division of U.S. Bank
National Association and U.S. Bancorp Investments, Inc. (the “Remarketing Agent”), subject to the receipt of the opinion of Nabors, Giblin
& Nickerson P.A.; as Bond Counsel to the Company, and certain other conditions. Certain legal matters, other than the validity of the Bonds
and the exclusion from gross income for federal and state income tax purposes of interest thereon, will be passed on for the Company by
its counsel, Liebler, Gonzalez & Portuondo and Morgan, Lewis & Bockius LLP, and for the Remarketing Agent by its counsel, Ballard Spahr
LLP. The Bonds are expected to be delivered through the facilities of DTC in New York, New York on or about November 19, 2020.

US Bancorp
November 9, 2020
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The information contained in this Reoffering Circular has been obtained from the
Company, DTC or other sources deemed reliable by the Company. No representation or warranty
is made as to the accuracy or completeness of such information, and nothing contained in this
Reoffering Circular is, or shall be relied upon as, a promise or representation by the Remarketing
Agent. This Reoffering Circular is submitted in connection with the reoffering of securities as
referred to herein and may not be reproduced or be used, in whole or in part, for any other purpose.
The delivery of this Reoffering Circular at any time does not imply that information herein or in
the Appendices to this Reoffering Circular is correct as of any time subsequent to its date.

The County has not reviewed or approved the information contained in this Reoffering
Circular.

The Remarketing Agent has provided the following sentence for inclusion in this
Reoffering Circular. The Remarketing Agent has reviewed the information in this Reoffering
Circular in accordance with, and as a part of, its responsibilities to investors under the federal
securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of this transaction, but the Remarketing
Agent does not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such information.

No broker, dealer, salesman or any other person has been authorized by the County, by the
Company or by the Remarketing Agent to give any information or to make any representation
other than as contained in this Reoffering Circular or in the Appendicesto this Reoffering Circular
in connection with the reoffering described herein. Neither the Company nor the Remarketing
Agent takes any responsibility for, nor can it provide any assurance as to the reliability of, any
other information. This Reoffering Circular does not constitute an offer of any securities other than
those described on the cover page or an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy in any
jurisdiction in which it is unlawful for such person to make such offer, solicitation or sale.

IN MAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION, INVESTORS MUST RELY ON
THEIR OWN EXAMINATION OF THE COMPANY AND THE TERMS OF THE
REOFFERING DESCRIBED IN THIS REOFFERING CIRCULAR INCLUDING THE
MERITS AND RISKS INVOLVED. THE SECURITIES DESCRIBED IN THIS
REOFFERING CIRCULAR HAVE NOT BEEN RECOMMENDED BY ANY FEDERAL
OR STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION OR REGULATORY AUTHORITY.
FURTHERMORE, THE FOREGOING REGULATORY AUTHORITIES HAVE NOT
CONFIRMED THE ACCURACY OR DETERMINED THE ADEQUACY OF THIS
REOFFERING CIRCULAR. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A
CRIMINAL OFFENSE.

CERTAIN PERSONS PARTICIPATING IN THE REOFFERING DESCRIBED IN
THIS REOFFERING CIRCULAR MAY ENGAGE IN TRANSACTIONS THAT
STABILIZE, MAINTAIN OR OTHERWISE AFFECT THE PRICE OF THE BONDS,
INCLUDING BY ENTERING STABILIZING BIDS.

Gulf 000039
20200151-El



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
INTRODUCTORY STATEMENT ..ot 1
THE COUNTY ottt b et b e e s he e en e an e e se e b e e anenae e s b e e s e snnenneas 2
THE BONDS ... .o bbb b n e s b e n e e nne s 3
THE AGREEMENT ...ttt s r e s nneen e 13
THE INDENTURE.......oooti b 16
THE TRUSTEE ... oot nneen e 21
REMARKETING OF THE BONDS........cooiiiiiiiii e 21
SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS RELATING TO THE BONDS........cocooiiieeeeeeeeee e 22
TAX MATTERS ... e r e 24
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE ........cooitiiieiieiiiiesee st nne s 25
LEGAL MATTERS.... ..o 26
MISCELLANEQOUS ... .ottt n e n e sne e s e e e nneene s 26
APPENDIX A — GULF POWER COMPANY ..ottt A-1
APPENDIX B — COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.......ooiiirr s B-1
APPENDIX C — ORIGINAL OPINION OF FORMER BOND COUNSEL .......ccccconiiiiiniciicce, C1
APPENDIX D — OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL ON CONVERSION .......ccccoiiiiiiiiniinnice D-1
APPENDIX E— FORM OF AMENDED AND RESTATED RULE 15C2-12 UNDERTAKING........ E-1

[
Gulf 000040

20200151-El



[THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

Gulf 000041
20200151-El



REOFFERING CIRCULAR

$65,000,000
Escambia County, Florida
Solid Waste Disposal Revenue Bonds
(Gulf Power Company Project),
First Series 2009
Due April 1, 2039

INTRODUCTORY STATEMENT

This Reoffering Circular, including the cover page and Appendices, is provided to furnish
information in connection with the reoffering of $65,000,000 aggregate principal amount of
Escambia County, Florida Solid Waste Disposal Revenue Bonds (Gulf Power Company Project),
First Series 2009 (the “Bonds”).

The Bonds were initially issued pursuant to a Trust Indenture dated as of March 1, 2009
(the “Indenture”) between Escambia County, Florida (the “County”) and U.S. Bank National
Association, as successor trustee (the “Trustee”), to provide funds to finance or refinance the
acquisition, construction, installation and equipping of certain solid waste disposal facilities (the
“Project”) located at the James F. Crist Generating Plant in Escambia County, Florida (the
“Plant”), which is owned and operated by Gulf Power Company (the “Company”).

The County loaned the original proceeds of the Bonds to the Company pursuant to a Loan
Agreement dated as of March 1, 2009 (the “Agreement”). In order to evidence the loan from the
County with respect to the Bonds (the “Loan”) and to provide for its repayment, the Company
issued a nonnegotiable promissory note related to the Bonds to the County (the “Note”) pursuant
to the Agreement. The County assigned all of its rights under the Note, including all payments to
be made by the Company thereunder, to the Trustee as part of the trust estate under the Indenture.
Payments required under the Note, if madein full and in atimely manner, will be sufficient to pay
when due the principal of, premium, if any, on, purchase price of and interest on the Bonds.

The Company has €elected to change the interest rate determination method for the Bonds.
On November 19, 2020 (the “Conversion Date”), the Bonds will be reoffered and will accrue
interest at aDaily Rate (as defined herein). The Bonds will be reoffered pursuant to the Indenture.

The Bonds will accrue interest at a Daily Rate until the Company changes the interest rate
on the Bonds to a Weekly Rate, a Commercial Paper Rate, an Index Rate or aLong-Term Ratein
accordance with the Indenture, in each case following a mandatory tender for purchase upon not
lessthan 15 days' prior written notice to the Bondholders.

THIS REOFFERING CIRCULAR DOES NOT DESCRIBE THE TERMS AND
PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE BONDS AFTER THE DATE THEY CONVERT TO
ACCRUE INTEREST, AS PERMITTED BY THE INDENTURE, AT INTEREST RATES
OTHER THAN THE DAILY RATE OR THE WEEKLY RATE DESCRIBED HEREIN.

The Bonds are the limited special obligations of the County payable solely from and
secured by revenues and proceeds to be received by the Trustee, as assignee of the County,
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pursuant to the Note. The Bonds are secured by an assignment and pledge to the Trustee of
substantially all of the County’s rights, title and interest in and to the Note and the Agreement.

U.S. Bank National Association is the Trustee under the Indenture. A principal corporate
trust office of U.S. Bank National Association iscurrently located in Atlanta, Georgia. The Trustee
may be removed at any time by the holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the
Bonds at the time outstanding. Any resignation of the Trustee will become effective with 30 days
written notice or upon the earlier acceptance of appointment by the successor Trustee. See “THE
TRUSTEE.”

Brief descriptions of the County, the Bonds, the Agreement, the Indenture, the Trustee and
certain other matters relating to the Bonds are set forth below.

Information with respect to the Company, including certain financial statements, isset forth
in Appendices A and B to this Reoffering Circular. On October 15, 2020, the Federal Regulatory
Commission approved the merger of the Company with and into Florida Power and Light
Company (“FPL”), with FPL as the surviving entity effective January 1, 2021. Upon the
effectiveness of the merger, FPL will succeed to the assets, rights and liabilities of the Company,
including obligations under the Loan Agreement.

The descriptions and summariesin this Reoffering Circular do not purport to be complete,
and reference is made to each document for the complete details of such document’s terms and
conditions. The statements made in this Reoffering Circular are qualified in their entirety by
reference to each such document. Capitalized terms not defined in this Reoffering Circular have
the meanings set forth in the Agreement and the Indenture, copies of which are available for
inspection, during the reoffering period of the Bonds, at the offices of the Trustee, U.S. Bank
National Association, Global Corporate Trust, Two Midtown Plaza, 1349 W. Peachtree Street
NW, Suite 1050, Atlanta, GA 30309.

THE COUNTY

The County is a political subdivision of the State of Florida, duly created and validly
existing pursuant to the Constitution and the laws of the State of Florida.

THE BONDS AND THE INTEREST THEREON SHALL NOT BE DEEMED TO BE A
GENERAL OBLIGATION OR A PLEDGE OF THE FAITH, CREDIT OR TAXING POWER
OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA OR ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF,
INCLUDING THE COUNTY, BUT SHALL BE LIMITED AND SPECIAL OBLIGATIONS
PAYABLE SOLELY FROM THE PROCEEDS DERIVED BY THE COUNTY UNDER THE
AGREEMENT AND THE NOTE. NEITHER THE COUNTY NOR THE STATE OF FLORIDA,
NOR ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF, SHALL BE OBLIGATED TO PAY THE
PRINCIPAL OF, PREMIUM, IF ANY, ON, PURCHASE PRICE OF OR INTEREST ON THE
BONDS OR OTHER COSTSINCIDENT THERETO EXCEPT FROM THE REVENUES AND
RECEIPTS PLEDGED THEREFOR, AND NEITHER THE FAITH AND CREDIT NOR THE
TAXING POWER OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA OR ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION
THEREOF, INCLUDING THE COUNTY, IS PLEDGED TO THE PAYMENT OF THE
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PRINCIPAL OF, PREMIUM, IF ANY, ON, PURCHASE PRICE OF OR INTEREST ON THE
BONDS OR OTHER COSTS INCIDENT THERETO.

NONE OF THE INFORMATION IN THISREOFFERING CIRCULAR HASBEEN
SUPPLIED, REVIEWED OR APPROVED BY THE COUNTY, AND THE COUNTY
MAKES NO REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, ASTO
THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF SUCH INFORMATION.

THE BONDS

The following is a summary of certain provisions of the Bonds. Reference is made to the
Indenture and the forms of the Bonds included therein for the detailed provisions of the Bonds.
This Reoffering Circular does not describe the terms and provisions applicable to the Bonds after
the date they convert to accrue interest at interest rates other than the Daily Rate or the Weekly
Rate as described herein.

General

The Bonds are dated March 31, 2009, the date of their original issuance and delivery, and
will mature on the date set forth on the cover page of this Reoffering Circular. The Company has
elected to reoffer all of the Bonds at a Daily Rate following a conversion in accordance with the
Indenture on the Conversion Date.

The Bonds may bear interest at a Daily Rate, a Weekly Rate, a Commercial Paper Rate, a
Long-Term Interest Rate or an Index Rate, as provided in the Indenture, provided, however, that
in no event shall the rate of interest on the Bonds exceed 15% per annum (the “Maximum I nterest
Rate’). The Company may change the interest rate determination method for the Bonds from time
to time, as described below under “Change in Interest Rate Determination Method.” A change in
the interest rate determination method for the Bonds will result in the mandatory tender of the
Bonds.

The Bonds are issued as fully registered bonds without coupons in denominations of
$100,000 or any integral multiple thereof. The Bonds are issued in the name of Cede & Co., as
registered owner and nominee of DTC. DTC acts as securities depository (the “Securities
Depository”) for the Bonds and individual purchases of Bonds may be made in only book-entry
form. So long as the Bonds are in book-entry form only, purchasers of Bonds will not receive
certificates representing their interest in the Bonds purchased. So long as Cede & Co. is the
registered owner of such Bonds, as nominee of DTC, references herein to the Bondholders or
registered owners or holders shall mean Cede & Co. and shall not mean the Beneficial Owners (as
defined herein) of the Bonds.

Solong as Cede & Co. isthe registered owner of Bonds, principal of, premium, if any, on,
purchase price of and interest on the Bonds are payableto Cede & Co., asnomineefor DTC, which
will, in turn, remit such amounts to the Direct or Indirect Participants (as defined herein) for
subsequent disbursement to the Beneficial Owners. See “— Book-Entry System.”
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U. S. Bank Municipal Products Group, adivision of U.S. Bank National Association, and
U.S. Bancorp Investments, Inc. have been appointed as remarketing agent for the Bonds under the
Indenture. See“REMARKETING OF THE BONDS” below.

Interest on the Bonds will be payable as described below. From the Conversion Date,
interest on the Bonds will accrue at the Daily Rate and be payable on the fifth Business Day (as
defined below) of each month. See* Summary” below for atable summarizing certain provisions
of the Bonds.

“Business Day” means any day other than (i) a Saturday or Sunday, (ii) a day on which
commercial banks in New York, New York, Atlanta, Georgia, or any other city in which the
designated corporate trust office of the Trustee may be located, are authorized by law to close or
(iii) aday on which the New Y ork Stock Exchangeis closed.

Book-Entry System

Portions of the following information concerning DTC and DTC' s Book-Entry System have
been obtained from DTC. The County, the Company and the Remarketing Agent make no
representation as to the accuracy of such information.

DTC will act as the Securities Depository for the Bonds. The Bonds will be reoffered as
fully-registered bonds registered in the name of Cede & Co., DTC’ s nominee, or such other name
as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One fully-registered global bond
certificate has been issued for the Bonds, representing in the aggregate the total principal amount
of the Bonds, and has been deposited with the Trustee on behalf of DTC.

DTC, the world's largest securities depository, is a limited purpose trust company
organized under the New Y ork Banking Law, a*banking organization” within the meaning of the
New Y ork Banking Law, amember of the Federal Reserve System, a“ clearing corporation” within
the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a “clearing agency” registered
pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holdsand
provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non U.S. equity issues, corporate
and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from over 100 countries) that DTC's
participants (“Direct Participants’) deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post trade
settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited
securities through electronic computerized book entry transfers and pledges between Direct
Participants accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates.
Direct Participants include both U.S. and non U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust
companies, clearing corporations and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly owned
subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”). DTCC is the holding
company for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing
Corporation, al of which are registered clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its
regulated subsidiaries. Accesstothe DTC systemisalso available to others such asboth U.S. and
non U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that
clear through or maintain a custodia relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or
indirectly (“Indirect Participants’). The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with
the Securities and Exchange Commission (“Commission”). More information about DTC can be
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found at www.dtcc.com. The contents of such website do not constitute a part of this Reoffering
Circular.

Purchases of Bonds within the DTC system must be made by or through Direct
Participants, which will receive a credit for the Bonds on DTC' s records. The ownership interest
of each actual purchaser of each Bond (the “Beneficial Owner”) isin turn to be recorded on the
Direct and Indirect Participants' records. Beneficial Ownerswill not receive written confirmation
from DTC of their purchases. Beneficial Owners, however, are expected to receive written
confirmations providing details of the transactions, aswell as periodic statements of their holdings,
from the Direct or Indirect Participants through which the Beneficial Owner purchased the Bonds.
Transfers of ownership interestsin the Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on the books
of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will
not receive certificates representing their ownership interestsin Bonds, except in the event that use
of the book-entry system for the Bonds is discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participantswith DTC are
registered in the name of DTC’s nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested
by an authorized representative of DTC. The deposit of Bonds with DTC and their registration in
the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any changes in beneficial
ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Bonds. DTC’ srecords
reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such Bonds are credited,
which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain
responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct
Participants to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to
Beneficial Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or
regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Beneficial Owners of Bonds may
wish to take certain steps to augment the transmission to them of notices of significant eventswith
respect to the Bonds, such asredemptions, tenders, defaults and proposed amendmentsto the Bond
documents. For example, Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to ascertain that the nominee
holding the Bondsfor their benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit noticesto Beneficial Owners.
Inthealternative, Beneficial Owners may wish to provide their names and addressesto theregistrar
and request that copies of notices be provided directly to them.

Redemption notices will be sent to DTC. If lessthan all of the Bonds are being redeemed,
DTC s practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in the
Bonds to be redeemed.

Although voting with respect to the Bonds is limited, in those cases where a vote is
required, neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with
respect to the Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC's
procedures. Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the County as soon as
possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s consenting or voting
rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts Bonds are credited on the record date
(identified in alisting attached to the Omnibus Proxy).
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Payments on the Bonds will be made to Cede & Co., or such other nominee as may be
regquested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC'spracticeisto credit Direct Participants
accounts upon DTC' sreceipt of funds and corresponding detail information from the Company or
the Trustee on the relevant payment date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on
DTC' srecords. Paymentsby Direct or Indirect Participantsto Beneficial Ownerswill be governed
by standing instructions and customary practices, asisthe case with securities held for the accounts
of customersin bearer form or registered in “street name,” and will be the responsibility of such
Direct or Indirect Participant and not of DTC, the Company, the Trustee or the County, subject to
any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Paymentsto Cede
& Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) are
the responsibility of the Trustee, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants is the
responsibility of DTC, and disbursements of such payments to the Beneficial Owners are the
responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as Securities Depository with respect to the
Bonds at any time by giving reasonable notice to the County or the Trustee. Under such
circumstances, in the event that a successor Securities Depository is not obtained, certificated
Bonds will be required to be printed and delivered to the holders of record. Additionaly, the
Company may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry transfers through DTC (or a
successor Securities Depository) with respect to the Bonds. The Company understands, however,
that under current industry practices, DTC would notify its Direct or Indirect Participants of the
Company’ s decision but will only withdraw beneficia interests from a global Bond at the request
of each Direct or Indirect Participant. In that event, certificates for the Bonds will be printed and
delivered to DTC.

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC’ s book-entry system has been
obtained from sources that the County, the Company, the Remarketing Agent (as defined herein)
and the Trustee believe to be reliable, but none of the County, the Company, the Remarketing
Agent or the Trustee takes any responsibility for the accuracy thereof. None of the County, the
Company, the Remarketing Agent or the Trustee has any responsibility for the performance by
DTC or its Direct or Indirect Participants of their respective obligations as described herein or
under the rules and procedures governing their respective operations.

In the event that the book-entry system is discontinued, a Bondholder may transfer or
exchange the Bonds in accordance with the Indenture. The Trustee will require a Bondholder,
among other things, to furnish appropriate endorsements and transfer documents and to pay any
taxes and fees required by law or permitted by the Indenture.

Except in connection with the purchase of Bonds tendered for purchase, the Trustee is not
required to transfer or exchange any Bond which has been called for redemption or during the
period beginning 15 days before mailing a notice of redemption of the Bonds or any portion of the
Bonds and ending on the redemption date. In addition, in case of such discontinuance, an
additional or co-paying agent may be designated.
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Interest on the Bonds

Interest will accrue and will be payable as described below. When interest is payable at a
Daily or Weekly Rate, interest will be computed on the basis of the actual number of days el apsed
over ayear of 365 days (366 daysin leap years). Interest on overdue principal and, to the extent
lawful, on overdue premium and interest will be payable at the rate on the Bonds on the day before
the default occurred. While there exists an Event of Default under the Indenture, the interest rate
on the Bonds will be the rate on such Bonds on the day before the Event of Default occurred.

Daily Rate

When interest on the Bonds is payable at a Daily Rate, the Remarketing Agent will set a
Daily Rate on or before 11:00 A.M., New Y ork City time, on each Business Day for that Business
Day. Each Daily Rate will be the minimum rate necessary (as determined by the Remarketing
Agent based on the examination of tax-exempt obligations comparable to the Bonds known by the
Remarketing Agent to have been priced or traded under then-prevailing market conditions) for the
Remarketing Agent to sell the Bonds on the day the Daily Rate is set at their principal amount
(without regard to accrued interest). The Daily Rate for any non-Business Day will be the rate for
the last day for which arate was set.

Weekly Rate

The Remarketing Agent will set a Weekly Rate on or before 5:00 P.M., New York City
time, on the last Business Day before the commencement of a period during which the Bonds are
to bear interest at a Weekly Rate and on each Tuesday thereafter so long as interest on the Bonds
isto be payable at a Weekly Rate or, if any Tuesday is not a Business Day, on the next preceding
Business Day. Each Weekly Rate will be the minimum rate necessary (as determined by the
Remarketing Agent based on the examination of tax-exempt obligations comparabl e to the Bonds
known by the Remarketing Agent to have been priced or traded under then-prevailing market
conditions) for the Remarketing Agent to sell the Bonds on the date the Weekly Rateis set at their
principal amount (without regard to accrued interest). Each Weekly Rate shall apply to (i) the
period beginning on the effective date of a change to a Weekly Rate and ending on the next
Tuesday or (ii) the period beginning on the Wednesday after the Weekly Rate is set and ending on
the following Tuesday or, if earlier, ending on the day before the effective date of a new method
of determining the interest rate on the Bonds, as applicable.

Fallback I nterest Period and Rate

If the appropriate Daily or Weekly Interest Rate is not or cannot be determined for any
reason, the method of determining interest on the Bonds will be automatically converted to the
Weekly Rate (without the necessity of complying with the requirements of the Indenture described
under “Change in Interest Rate Determination Method”) and the interest rate will be equal to the
SIFMA Index plus the SIFMA Margin or, if the SIFMA Index is unavailable, the LIBOR Index
multiplied by the LIBOR Percentage, or if the LIBOR Index is unavailable, 90% of the 30-day
Treasury rate, until such time as the method of determining interest on the Bonds can be changed
in accordance with the Indenture. The Trustee will promptly notify the Bondholders of any such
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automatic conversion as provided in the Indenture and the Bonds shall be subject to mandatory
tender as described under “Mandatory Tender.”

Calculation and Notice of I nterest

The Remarketing Agent will provide the Trustee and the Company with notice in writing
or by Electronic Means by 12:30 P.M., New York City time, (i) on the first Business Day after a
month in which interest on the Bonds was payable at a Daily Rate, of the Daily Rate for each day
in such month, (ii) on each day on which a Weekly Rate becomes effective, of the Weekly Rate,
and (iii) on any Business Day preceding any redemption or purchase date, of any interest rate
requested by the Trustee in order to enable it to calcul ate the accrued interest, if any, due on such
redemption or purchase date. Using the rates supplied by such notice, the Trustee will calculate
the interest payable on the Bonds. The Trustee will confirm the effective interest rate by telephone
or in writing to any Bondholder who requests it in writing.

The setting of the rates by the Remarketing Agent and the calculation of interest payable
on the Bonds by the Trustee as provided in the Indenture will be conclusive and binding on the
County, the Company, the Trustee and the owners of the Bonds.

Changein Interest Rate Determination Method

The Company may from time to time change the method of determining the interest rate
on the Bonds by (1) notice to the County, the Trustee and the Remarketing Agent, and (2) under
certain circumstances set forth in the Indenture, delivery of a Favorable Opinion of Tax Counsel.
The Company’s notice will specify (i) the effective date of the proposed Change in Interest Rate
Determination Method and (ii) the proposed interest rate determination method. The interest rate
payable on the Bonds will be payable at the proposed rate on the effective date specified in the
Company’s notice, provided that: (i) the Company’s notice complies with the provisions of the
Indenture and the change to the proposed interest rate determination method complies with certain
limitations set forth in the Indenture; (ii) the notice is accompanied by a Favorable Opinion of Tax
Counsal; and (iii) confirmation of the Favorable Opinion of Bond Counsel is delivered on the
effective date specified in the notice (see “ Cancellation of Change in Interest Rate Determination
Method if Opinion of Tax Counsel is Not Confirmed” below).

Notice of Changein Interest Rate Determination Method

The Trustee, upon receiving notice from the Company pursuant to the Indenture, isrequired
to give at least 15 days written notice by first-class mail to the Bondholders before the effective
date of achangein theinterest rate determination method. Each notice will be effective when sent
and will state:

(1) the purchase date (and, if the Bonds provide that accrued interest will not
be paid on the purchase date, the date it will be paid);

(i)  thepurchase price;

(iii)  that the Bonds to be tendered must be surrendered to collect the purchase
price;
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(iv)  theaddressat which or the manner in which the Bonds must be surrendered,

(v)  that interest on the Bonds to be tendered ceases to accrue on the purchase
date;

(vi)  that theinterest rate determination method will be changed;
(vii)  the proposed effective date of the new rate; and

(viii) that a mandatory tender will result on the effective date of the change as
provided in the Bonds and that, in the case of a failed conversion, the interest rate
determination method will automatically be converted to a Weekly Rate, and the Bonds
will continue to be subject to mandatory tender on such proposed effective date.

Failureto give any required notice of tender asto any particular Bonds or any defect therein
will not affect the validity of the tender of any Bonds in respect of which no such failure or defect
has occurred. Any notice mailed as provided in the Bonds shall be effective when sent and will
be conclusively presumed to have been given whether or not actually received by any holder.

Cancellation of Changein Interest Rate Deter mination Method if Opinion of Tax Counsdl is
Not Confirmed

No change will be made in the interest rate determination method at the direction of the
Company as described under “Change in Interest Rate Determination Method” above if the
Company shall fail to deliver on the effective date confirmation of the Favorable Opinion of Tax
Counsel under “Change in Interest Rate Determination Method” above. If a confirming Opinion
of Tax Counsel is not so delivered, the Trustee will promptly give notice thereof to the holders of
the Bonds if notice of the Change in Interest Rate Determination Method has been given and the
Bonds shall continue to be subject to mandatory tender as described under “Mandatory Tender.”

Mandatory Tender

Mandatory Tender upon a Change in the Method of Determining the Interest Rate on the
Bonds. On the effective date of the change in the method of determining the interest rate on the
Bonds, the Bonds will be subject to mandatory tender. Any such mandatory tender will be at a
price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Bonds plus accrued interest to (but excluding)
the purchase date, with interest accruing at a Daily Rate to be paid on the fifth Business Day
following the purchase date.

Optional Tender

While the Bonds bear interest at a Daily Rate or a Weekly Rate, the holder of any Bond
may elect to haveits Bond (or any portion of its Bond equal to the lowest authorized denomination
or whole multiples thereof) purchased by the Trustee at 100% of the principa amount thereof plus
interest accrued to the date of purchase, as described below.

Daily Rate Tender. When interest on a Bond is payable at a Daily Rate and a book-entry
system is in effect, a Beneficial Owner of such Bond (through its Direct Participant in the

Gulf 000050
20200151-El



Securities Depository) may tender its interest in a Bond (or portion of Bond) by delivering an
irrevocable written notice or an irrevocabl e tel ephone notice, promptly confirmed in writing or by
Electronic Means, to the Trustee and an irrevocable notice (in writing or by Electronic Means) to
the Remarketing Agent, in each case by 11:00 A.M., New York City time, on a Business Day,
stating the principal amount of the Bond (or portion of Bond) being tendered, payment instructions
for the purchase price and the Business Day (which may be the date the notice is delivered) the
Bond (or portion of Bond) isto be purchased. The Beneficial Owner shall effect delivery of such
Bond by causing such Direct Participant to transfer itsinterest in the Bond equal to such Beneficial
Owner’s interest on the records of the Securities Depository to the participant account of the
Trustee with the Securities Depository. Any notice received by the Trustee after 11:00 A.M., New
Y ork City time, will be deemed to have been given on the next Business Day.

When interest on aBond is payable at a Daily Rate and a book-entry system isnot in effect,
aholder of aBond may tender the Bond (or portion of Bond) by delivering (i) the notices described
above (which must include the certificate number of the Bond) and (ii) the Bond to the Trustee by
1:00 P.M., New Y ork City time, on the date of purchase.

Weekly Rate Tender. When interest on a Bond is payable at a Weekly Rate and a book-
entry system is in effect, a Beneficial Owner of such Bond (through its Direct Participant in the
Securities Depository) may tender its interest in a Bond (or portion of Bond) by delivering an
irrevocable written notice or an irrevocable telephone notice, promptly confirmed in writing, to
the Trustee and an irrevocabl e notice to the Remarketing Agent in writing or by Electronic Means,
in each case prior to 5:00 P.M., New York City time, on a Business Day stating the principal
amount of the Bond (or portion of Bond) being tendered, payment instructions for the purchase
price, and the date, which must be a Business Day at |east seven days after the notice is delivered,
on which the Bond (or portion of Bond) is to be purchased. The Beneficial Owner shall effect
delivery of such Bond by causing such Direct Participant to transfer its interest in the Bond equal
to such Beneficial Owner’s interest on the records of the Securities Depository to the participant
account of the Trustee with the Securities Depository.

When interest on a Bond is payable at a Weekly Rate and a book-entry system is not in
effect, a holder of a Bond may tender the Bond (or portion of Bond) by delivering (i) the notices
described above (which must include the certificate number of the Bond) and (ii) the Bond to the
Trustee by 1:00 P.M., New Y ork City time, on the date of purchase.

Payment of Purchase Price. Payment of the purchase price of Bondsto be purchased upon
optional tender as described above will be made by the Trustee in immediately available funds by
the close of business on the date of purchase. During a Daily Rate Period, if a Bond is tendered
after the Record Date and before the Interest Payment Date for that Interest Period, the Trustee
will pay apurchase price of principal plusinterest accruing after the last day of that Interest Period.
The tendering holder will receive interest for that Interest Period from the Trustee pursuant to the
usual procedures for the payment of interest.

Provisions Applicable to All Tenders. Bonds for which the owners have given notice of
tender for purchase but which are not delivered on the tender date shall be deemed tendered. Bonds
tendered for purchase on adate after acall for redemption has been given but before the redemption
date will be purchased pursuant to the tender.
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Notices in respect of tenders and Bonds tendered must be delivered as follows:

Trustee Remarketing Agent

U.S. Bank National Association U.S. Bancorp Investments, Inc. and U.S. Bank
1349 W Peachtree Street NW - Suite 1050  Municipal Products Group, a division of U.S.
Atlanta, Georgia 30309 Bank National Association

3 Bryant Park

1095 Avenue of the Americas

New York, New York 10036
Attention: Short Term Trading & Sales

The above delivery addresses or telephone numbers of the Trustee or the Remarketing Agent may
be changed by notice mailed by first-class mail to the Bondholders at their registered addresses.
All tendered Bonds must be accompanied by an instrument of transfer satisfactory to the Trustee,
executed in blank by the holder or its duly authorized attorney, with the signature guaranteed by
an eligible guarantor institution.

Effect of Tender

No purchase of Bonds by the Company or advance use of any funds to effectuate any such
purchase will be deemed to be a payment or redemption of the Bonds or of any portion thereof and
such purchase will not operate to extinguish or discharge the indebtedness evidenced by such
Bonds.

Irrevocability

Each notice of tender, whether delivered in writing or by telephone or facsimile
transmission, will automatically constitute an irrevocable tender for purchase of the Bond (or
portion) to which the notice relates on the purchase date at a price equal to 100% of the principal
amount of such Bond (or portion) plus any interest thereon accrued and unpaid as of the purchase
date. The determination of the Trustee as to whether a notice of tender has been properly delivered
will be conclusive and binding upon the Bondholders.

The Trustee may refuse to accept delivery of any Bond for which a proper instrument of
transfer has not been provided. If any owner of a Bond who gave notice fails to deliver its Bond
to the Trustee at the place and on the applicable date and time specified, or fails to deliver its Bond
properly endorsed, its Bond shall constitute an undelivered Bond and will be purchased on the date
specified in the notice.

Remarketing and Purchase

Except to the extent the Company directs the Remarketing Agent not to do so and except
as otherwise provided in the Indenture, the Remarketing Agent for the Bonds will offer for sale
and use reasonable efforts to sell all Bonds of such issue tendered for purchase at a price equal to
100% of the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest, if any, to the purchase date. The
Trustee will pay the purchase price of the Bonds tendered for purchase first from the proceeds of
the remarketing of such Bonds and, if such remarketing proceeds are insufficient, from moneys
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made available by the Company pursuant to the Agreement and the Note. The Company is
obligated under the Agreement and the Note to purchase any Bonds tendered for purchase to the
extent such Bonds have not been remarketed.

Redemption

Optional Redemption: When interest on the Bonds is payable at a Daily or Weekly Rate,
the Bonds may be redeemed in whole or in part, at the option of the Company, on any Business
Day at the redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest
to the redemption date, except that interest accruing at a Daily Rate will be paid on the fifth
Business Day following the redemption date.

Extraordinary Optional Redemption: The Bonds are subject to redemption in whole at any
time prior to maturity at the redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof, plus
accrued interest to the redemption date, but without premium, upon receipt by the Trustee and the
County of awritten notice from the Company stating that the Company has determined that:

@ any federal, state or local body exercising governmental or judicial authority has
taken any action which results in the imposition of unreasonable burdens or excessive liabilities
with respect to the Project or the Plant, rendering impracticable or uneconomical the operation of
either the Project or the Plant, including, without limitation, the condemnation or taking by eminent
domain of al or substantialy all of the Project or the Plant; or

(b) changes in the economic availability of raw materials, operating supplies or
facilities or technological or other changes have made the continued operation of the Plant as an
efficient generating facility uneconomical; or

(c) the Project or the Plant has been damaged or destroyed to such an extent that it is
not practicable or desirable to rebuild, repair or restore the Project or the Plant.

Notice of Redemption: At least 30 days before the redemption date of any Bonds, the
Trustee shall cause anotice of any such redemption to be mailed first class, postage prepaid, to all
registered owners of Bonds to be redeemed at their addresses as they appear on the registration
books maintained by the Trustee. No further interest will accrue on the principal of any Bonds
called for redemption after the redemption date if notice has been duly given and payment of the
redemption price thereof and accrued interest has been duly provided for, and the owners of such
Bondswill have no rights with respect to such Bonds except to receive payment of the redemption
price thereof and interest accrued to, but not including, the redemption date. With respect to an
optional redemption of any Bonds, unless moneys sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on
the Bonds to be redeemed shall have been received by the Trustee prior to the giving of such notice
of redemption, such notice may state that said redemption shall be conditional upon receipt of such
moneys by the Trustee on or prior to the date fixed for redemption. If such moneysare not received,
such notice shall be of no force and effect, the County shall not redeem such Bonds, the redemption
price shall not be due and payable and the Trustee shall give notice, in the same manner in which
the notice of redemption was given, that such moneys were not so received and that such Bonds
will not be redeemed.
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Failure to give any required notice of redemption as to any particular Bonds or any defect
therein will not affect the validity of the call for redemption of any Bonds in respect of which no
such failure or defect has occurred. Any notice mailed as provided in the Bonds shall be effective
when sent and will be conclusively presumed to have been given whether or not actually received

by the addressee.

Effect of Notice of Redemption. When notice is required and given, Bonds called for
redemption become due and payabl e on the redemption date; in such case when funds are deposited
with the Trustee sufficient for redemption, interest on the Bonds to be redeemed ceases to accrue

as of the date of redemption.

Summary

Certain provisions of the Bonds and the Indenture are summarized in the following table:

DAILY RATE

MANDATORY TENDER On effective date of
Change in Interest
Rate Determination

Method
OPTIONAL TENDER,; On any Business Day;
NOTICE notice no later than
11:00 A.M. same day
INTEREST PERIODS Each day
INTEREST RATE Each Business Day
DETERMINED
INTEREST ACCRUAL Calendar Month
PERIOD
INTEREST Fifth Business Day of
PAYMENT DATE next month
RECORD DATE Last Business Day of
month

OPTIONAL REDEMPTION On any Business Day
BY COMPANY

THE AGREEMENT

WEEKLY RATE

On effective date of Changein
Interest Rate Determination
Method

On any Business Day; notice no
later than 5:00 P.M., seven days
in advance

Wednesday through Tuesday

Each Tuesday (or preceding
Business Day)

Calendar Month
First Business Day of next month
Business Day before Interest

Payment Date
On any Business Day

The following is a summary of certain provisions of the Agreement. This summary is not a
complete recital of the terms of the Agreement, and reference is made to the Agreement in its

entirety for the detailed provisions thereof.
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| ssuance of the Bonds

The County issued the Bonds and loaned the proceeds of the sale thereof to the Company
for the purpose of financing or refinancing certain costs of construction related to the Project at
the Plant.

Repayment of the Loan and Other Amounts Payable

In order to evidence the Loan and the Company’s obligation to repay the same, the
Company hasissued the Note in the same aggregate principal amount as the Bonds and having the
same stated maturity and interest rate. Pursuant to the Note, the Company will pay to the Trustee,
as assignee of the County, amounts which, and at or before times which, shall correspond to the
payments in respect of the principa of, premium, if any, on, interest on and the purchase price of
the Bonds whenever and in whatever manner the same shall become due, whether at stated
maturity, upon redemption or declaration or otherwise. The Company will aso pay the purchase
price of Bonds required to be purchased under the terms of the Indenture to the extent there are no
remarketing proceedsto pay such amounts. In the event there are available moneys on deposit with
the Trustee with respect to the Bonds on any payment date, such moneys will be credited against
the payment then due.

The Company will also pay the fees, charges and reasonable expenses of the Trustee, any
paying agents and any tender agents under the Indenture and any expenses in connection with any
redemption of the Bonds.

Term of Agreement

The Agreement shall remain in full force and effect until such time asall of the outstanding
Bonds have been fully paid or provision made therefor in accordance with the terms of the
Indenture, whichever shall first occur, and the fees and expenses of the Trustee and any paying
agents and all other amounts payable by the Company under the Agreement and the Note shall
have been paid.

Obligations of the Company Unconditional

The Company agrees that its obligations to make payments as provided in the Note and to
perform and observe the other agreements on its part contained in the Agreement are absolute and
unconditional notwithstanding, among other things, any changes in the tax or other laws of the
United States of America or of the State of Florida or any political subdivision of either thereof or
any failure by the County to perform its obligations under the Agreement.

Assignment and Pledge

The County assigned to the Trustee a security interest in al of itsrights, title and interests
in and to (i) the Note and all payments thereunder, (ii) the Agreement and al moneys receivable
thereunder (except for certain payments under the Agreement in respect of indemnification and
certain feesand expenses) and (iii) amounts held in the bond fund and the construction fund created
under the Indenture as provided in the Indenture. The Company assented to such assignment and
agreed that, as to the Trusteeg, its obligations to make such payments will be absolute and not
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subject to any defense or any right of set-off, counterclaim or recoupment arising out of any breach
by the County or the Trustee of any obligation to the Company, whether under the Agreement or
otherwise, or out of any indebtedness or liability at any time owing to the Company by the County
or the Trustee.

Consolidation, Merger or Sale of Assets

The Company agrees that during the term of the Agreement it will maintain its corporate
existence and qualification to do business in the State of Florida, will not dissolve or otherwise
dispose of all or substantially all of its assets and will not consolidate with or merge into another
corporation or permit one or more other corporationsto consolidate with or merge into it; provided
that the Company may consolidate with or merge into another domestic corporation (i.e., a
corporation incorporated and existing under the laws of one of the states of the United States of
America or under the laws of the United States of America) or permit one or more other
corporations to consolidate with or merge into it, or sell or otherwise transfer to another domestic
corporation all or substantially all of its assets as an entirety and thereafter dissolve; provided, in
the event the Company is not the surviving, resulting or transferee corporation, that the surviving,
resulting or transferee corporation assumes, accepts and agrees in writing to pay and perform all
of the obligations of the Company under the Agreement and the Note and is incorporated in or
gualified to do business in Florida as aforeign corporation and that such consolidation or merger
does not result in the loss of the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes of
interest on the outstanding Bonds.

Defaults and Remedies; Force Majeure

The Agreement provides that the happening of one or more of the following events will
constitute an “Event of Default” under the Agreement: (a) failure by the Company to pay when
due the amountsrequired to be paid pursuant to the Note, which failure, in the case of such amounts
in respect of interest on any Bond, continues for five days; (b) failure by the Company to pay
within 30 days of the date due any other amounts required to be paid pursuant to the Agreement;
(c) failure by the Company to observe and perform any other of its covenants, conditions or
agreements under the Agreement for a period of 90 days after written notice from the County or
the Trustee, unless extended; and (d) certain events of bankruptcy, insolvency, dissolution,
liquidation, winding-up, reorganization or other similar events of the Company.

Under the terms of the Agreement, certain of the Company’s obligations referred to in
clause (c) of the preceding paragraph may be suspended if by reason of force majeure (as defined
in the Agreement) the Company is unable to carry out such obligations.

Whenever an Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing, the Trustee, as
assignee of therights of the County, may, in addition to any other remedy now or hereafter existing
at law, in equity or by statute, take either or both of the following remedia steps: (a) by written
notice to the Company, declare all amounts payable pursuant to the Note to be immediately due
and payable and (b) take whatever action at law or in equity may appear necessary or desirable to
collect the amounts referred to in (a) above then due and thereafter to become due under the Note,
or to enforce performance and observance of any obligation, agreement or covenant of the
Company under the Agreement.
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Any amounts collected pursuant to any above action taken will be deposited with the
Trustee and applied in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture, or, if the Bonds have been
fully paid (or provision for payment thereof has been made in accordance with the provisions of
the Indenture) and the fees and expenses of the Trustee and the paying agentsand all other amounts
required to be paid under the Indenture shall have been paid, returned to the Company.

Amendment of the Agreement

Prior to the payment of the Bondsin full (or provision for the payment thereof having been
made in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture), the Agreement may not be terminated
and may not be effectively amended except by written agreement in accordance with the Indenture.
See “ THE INDENTURE—Amendment of the Agreement.”

THE INDENTURE

In addition to the description of the provisions of the Indenture contained elsewhere herein, the
following is a summary of certain provisions of the Indenture. This summary is not a complete
recital of the terms of the Indenture and reference is made to the Indenture in its entirety for the
detailed provisions thereof.

Permitted | nvestments

Except as otherwise provided in the Indenture, any moneys held by the Trustee shall be
invested and reinvested by the Trustee, at the written direction of the Company to the extent
permitted by law, in: (a) Government Obligations (as defined under “—Defeasance”); (b) bonds
and notes of the Federal Land Bank; (c) obligations of the Federal Intermediate Credit Bank; (d)
obligations of the Federal Bank for Cooperatives; (e) bonds and notes of Federal Home Loan
Banks; (f) negotiable or non-negotiable certificates of deposit, time deposits or similar banking
arrangements, issued by a bank or trust company (which may be the commercial banking
department of the Trustee or any bank or trust company under common control with the Trustee)
or savings and loan association which are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
or secured as to principal by Government Obligations; (g) investments made in or through the
Trustee' s cash sweep accounts or other short-term investment funds, the assets of which consist of
Government Obligations; or (h) other investments then permitted by law.

Default Under the Indenture
One or more of the following constitutes an “Event of Default” under the Indenture:

@ default in the payment of any interest on any Bond outstanding under the Indenture
when due and as the same shall become due and payable, which default continues for five days,

(b) default in the due and punctual payment of principal on any Bond when due and
payable, whether at maturity, upon redemption or by declaration or otherwise;

(© default in the due and punctual payment of the purchase price of any Bond required
to be purchased in accordance with its terms; or
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(d) the occurrence and continuance of an “Event of Default” under the Agreement.
Remedies Under the Indenture

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, the Trustee may, and upon written request of
the holders of not lessthan 25% in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding shall,
by notice in writing delivered to the County and the Company, declare the principal of all Bonds
then outstanding and the interest accrued thereon immediately due and payable and such principal
and interest shall thereupon become and be immediately due and payable.

If, after the principal of the Bonds and the accrued interest thereon have been so declared
due and payable, all arrears of interest and interest on overdue installments of interest (if lawful)
and the principal of and premium, if any, on all Bonds then outstanding which shall have become
due and payable other than by acceleration, and all other sums payable under the Indenture, under
the Agreement or upon the Bonds, except the principal of, and interest on, the Bonds which by
such declaration shall have become due and payable, are paid by the County, and the County also
performs all other things in respect of which it may have been in default under the Indenture and
pays the reasonable fees, charges, costs and expenses of the Trustee, the Bondholders and any
trustee appointed under law, including the Trustee' sreasonable attorney’ sfees, costs and expenses,
then, and in every such case, the Trustee shall annul such declaration and its consequences, and
such annulment shall be binding upon all holders of the Bonds issued under the Indenture; but no
such annulment shall extend to or affect any subsequent default or impair any right or remedy
consequent thereon.

If an Event of Default occursand is continuing, subject to the Indenture, the Trustee, before
or after declaring the principal of the Bonds and the interest accrued thereon immediately due and
payable, may, and upon written request of the holders of not less than 25% in aggregate principal
amount of the Bonds then outstanding shall, by notice in writing delivered to the County and the
Company, pursue any available remedy, including appointment of areceiver, by proceeding at law
or in equity available to the Trustee under the Agreement or the Note to collect the principal of or
interest on the Bonds or to enforce the performance of any provision of the Bonds, the Indenture,
the Agreement or the Note. The Trustee, as the assignee of all the rights, title and interest of the
County in and to the Agreement and the Note, may enforce each and every right granted to the
County under the Agreement and the Note. In exercising such rights and the rights given the
Trustee under the Indenture, the Trustee shall take such action as, in the judgment of the Trustee
applying the standards described in the Indenture, would best serve the interests of the
Bondholders. If any Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, the Trustee in its discretion
may, and upon the written request of the holders of not lessthan 25% in aggregate principal amount
of the Bonds then outstanding shall, by notice in writing delivered to the County and the Company,
and receipt of indemnity to its satisfaction, in its own name: (a) by mandamus, or other suit, action
or proceeding at law or in equity, enforce all rights of the Bondholders, including the right to
require the County to enforce any rights under the Agreement and the Note and to require the
County to carry out any other provisions of the Indenture for the benefit of the Bondholders and
to perform its duties under the Florida Industrial Development Financing Act; (b) bring suit upon
the Bonds; (c) by action or suit in equity require the County to account asif it were the trustee of
an express trust for the Bondholders; or (d) by action or suit in equity enjoin any acts or things
which may be unlawful or in violation of the rights of the Bondholders.
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No remedy conferred upon or reserved to the Trustee or to the Bondholders by the terms
of the Indenture is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy, but each and every such remedy
shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to any other remedy given to the Trustee or to the
Bondholders under the Indenture or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute. No
delay or omission to exercise any right or power accruing upon any default or Event of Default
shall impair any such right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver of any such default or
Event of Default or acquiescence therein; and every such right and power may be exercised from
time to time as often as may be deemed expedient. No waiver of any default or Event of Default
under the Indenture, whether by the Trustee or by the Bondholders, shall extend to or shall affect
any subsequent default or Event of Default or shall impair any rights or remedies consequent
thereon.

Upon the occurrence and continuance of an Event of Default, and upon the filing of a suit
or other commencement of judicial proceedings to enforce the rights of the Trustee and of the
Bondholders under the Indenture, the Trustee shall be entitled as a matter of right to the
appointment of a receiver or receivers of the trust estate with such powers as the court making
such appointment shall confer.

In the event of abankruptcy or reorganization of the Company, the Trustee may file aproof
of claim on behalf of all Bondholders with respect to the obligations of the Company pursuant to
the Agreement and the Note.

A Bondholder may not pursue any remedy with respect to the Indenture or the Bonds unless
(a) the Bondholder gives the Trustee written notice stating that an Event of Default is continuing,
(b) the Bondholders of at least 25% in principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding make a
written request to the Trustee to pursue the remedy, (c) such Bondholder or Bondholders offer to
the Trustee indemnity satisfactory to the Trustee against any loss, liability, cost or expense
(including reasonable attorney’s fees, costs and expenses) and (d) the Trustee does not comply
with the request within 60 days after receipt of the request and the offer of indemnity. Nothing
contained in the Indenture shall, however, affect or impair the right of any Bondholder to enforce
the payment of the principal of, premium, if any, on and interest on any Bond at and after the stated
maturity thereof.

A Bondholder may not use the Indenture to prejudice the rights of another Bondholder or
to obtain a preference or priority over the other Bondholders.

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Indenture, the right of any Bondholder to
receive payment of principal of and interest on a Bond, on or after the due dates expressed in the
Bond, or the purchase price of aBond on or after the date for its purchase as provided in the Bond,
or to bring suit for the enforcement of any such payment on or after such dates, shall not be
impaired or affected without the consent of the Bondhol der.

Waiversof Eventsof Default; Control by Majority

The holders of a mgjority in principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding, by written
noticeto the Trustee, may waive an existing Event of Default and its consequences. When an Event
of Default is waived, it is cured and stops continuing, but no such waiver shall extend to any
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subsequent or other Event of Default or impair any right consequent to it. The holders of amajority
in principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding may, in writing, direct the time, method and
place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to the Trustee or of exercising any
trust or power conferred on it. However, the Trustee, upon the advice of counsel, may refuse to
follow any direction that conflicts with law or the Indenture or that the Trustee determines is
unduly prejudicial to the rights of other Bondholders or would involve the Trustee in personal
liability.

Defeasance

Any Bond will be deemed paid for al purposes of the Indenture when (a) payment of the
principal of and interest (which, when Bonds bear interest at the Daily or Weekly Rate, shall be
calculated at the Maximum Interest Rate) on the Bond to the due date of such principal and interest
(whether at maturity, upon redemption or otherwise) or the payment of the purchase price either
(1) has been made in accordance with the terms of the Bonds or (2) has been provided for by
depositing with the Trustee in trust (A) moneys in an amount which are sufficient to make such
payment and/or (B) Government Obligations maturing asto principal and interest in such amounts
and at such times as will insure, without any further reinvestment, the availability of sufficient
moneys to make such payment, and (b) all compensation and reasonable costs and expenses of the
Trustee (including reasonable attorney’s fees) pertaining to each Bond in respect of which such
deposit is made have been paid or provided for to the Trustee's satisfaction. When a Bond is
deemed paid, it will no longer be secured by or entitled to the benefits of the Indenture or be an
obligation of the County and shall be payable solely from the moneys or Government Obligations
described above under clause (a)(2), except that such Bond may be tendered if and as provided in
the Bonds and it may be registered as transferred, exchanged, registered, discharged from
registration or replaced as provided in the Indenture.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, upon the deposit of funds or Government Obligations
under clause (a)(2) in the above paragraph, the purchase price of tendered Bonds shall be paid
from the sale of Bonds under the Indenture. If payment of such purchase price is not made from
the sale of Bonds pursuant to the Indenture, payment shall be made from funds (or Government
Obligations) on deposit pursuant to the Indenture without the need of any further instruction or
direction by the Company, in which case such Bonds shall be surrendered to the Trustee and
canceled.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no deposit under clause (a)(2) in the first paragraph above
shall be deemed a payment of aBond until (1) the Company has furnished the Trustee a Favorable
Opinion of Tax Counsdl to the effect that (a) the deposit of such cash or Government Obligations
will not cause the Bonds to become “ arbitrage bonds” under Section 148 of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”) and (b) al of the conditions precedent to the defeasance
of the Bonds have been complied with, and (2) (a) notice of redemption of the Bond is given in
accordance with the Indenture or, if the Bond is not to be redeemed or paid within the next 60
days, until the Company has given the Trustee, in form satisfactory to the Trustee, irrevocable
instructions (i) to notify, as soon as practicable, the owner of the Bond, in accordance with the
Indenture, that the deposit required by clause (a)(2) in the first paragraph above has been made
with the Trustee and that the Bond is deemed to be paid under the Indenture and stating the maturity
or redemption date upon which moneys are to be available for the payment of the principal of the
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Bond, premium, if any, on and interest on such Bond, if the Bond is to be redeemed rather than
paid and (ii) to give notice of redemption not less than 30 nor more than 60 days prior to the
redemption date for such Bond or (b) the maturity date of the Bond.

“Government Obligations’ means (i) noncallable direct obligations of the United Statesfor
which its full faith and credit are pledged, (ii) noncallable obligations of a Person controlled or
supervised by and acting as an agency or instrumentality of the United States, the timely payment
of which is unconditionally guaranteed as a full faith and credit obligation of the United States or
(iii) securities or receipts evidencing ownership interests in obligations or specified portions (such
as principal or interest) of obligations described in (i) or (ii).

Amendment of the Indenture

Any amendment of or supplement to the Indenture will be effected by a supplemental
indenture entered into by the County and the Trustee. The County and the Trustee may enter into
supplemental indentures without notice to or the consent of any Bondholder for the following
purposes:. (a) to cure any ambiguity, inconsistency, formal defect or omission; (b) to grant to the
Trustee for the benefit of the Bondholders additional rights, remedies, powers or authority; (c) to
subject to the Indenture additional collateral or to add other agreements of the County; (d) to
modify the Indenture or the Bonds to permit qualification under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939,
as amended, or any similar federal statute at the timein effect, or to permit the qualification of the
Bonds for sale under the securities |aws of any state of the United States; (€) to authorize different
authorized denominations of the Bonds and to make correl ative amendments and modifications to
the Indenture regarding exchangeability of the Bonds of different authorized denominations,
redemptions of portions of the Bonds of particular authorized denominations and similar
amendments and modifications of atechnical nature; (f) to increase or decrease the number of days
specified for the giving of notices of mandatory tender and to make corresponding changes to the
period for notice of redemption of the Bonds; (g) to provide for an uncertificated system of
registering the Bonds or to provide for the change to or from a book-entry system for the Bonds;
(h) to evidence the succession of a new Trustee or the appointment by the Trustee or the County
of a co-trustee; (i) to make any change that does not materially adversely affect the rights of any
Bondholder; or (j) to make any other changes to the Indenture that take effect as to any or all
remarketed Bonds following a mandatory tender.

Except for supplemental indentures entered into for the purposes described in the preceding
paragraph, the Indenture will not be amended or supplemented without the consent of the holders
of at least amagjority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds at the time outstanding thereunder;
provided that, without the consent of each Bondholder affected thereby, no amendment or
supplement may: (a) extend the maturity of the principal of, or interest on, any Bond; (b) reduce
the principal amount of, or rate of interest on, any Bond; (c) effect a privilege or priority of any
Bond or Bonds over any other Bond or Bonds; (d) reduce the percentage of the principal amount
of the Bonds required for consent to such amendment or supplement; (e) impair the exclusion from
federal grossincome of interest on any Bond; (f) eliminate the holders’ rightsto tender the Bonds,
or any mandatory redemption of the Bonds, extend the due date for the purchase of Bonds tendered
by the holdersthereof or call for mandatory redemption or reduce the purchase or redemption price
of such Bonds; (g) create alien ranking prior to or on a parity with the lien of the Indenture on the
property described in the Granting Clause of the Indenture; or (h) deprive any Bondholder of the
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lien created by the Indenture on such property. In addition, if moneys or Government Obligations
have been deposited or set aside with the Trustee for the payment of Bonds as described under*“—
Defeasance” herein and those Bonds shall not have in fact been actually paid in full, no amendment
to the defeasance provisions of the Indenture shall be made without the consent of the holder of
each of those Bonds affected.

Amendment of the Agreement

The County may enter into, and the Trustee may consent to, any amendment of or
supplement to the Agreement or the Note, or may waive compliance by the Company of any
provision of the Agreement or the Note, in each case without notice to or consent of any
Bondholder, if the amendment, supplement or waiver is required or permitted: (a) by the provisions
of the Agreement or the Indenture, (b) to cure any ambiguity, inconsistency, formal defect or
omission, (c) to identify more precisely the Project, (d) in connection with any authorized
amendment of or supplement to the Indenture or (e) to make any change that in the judgment of
the Trustee, with the advice of counsel, does not materially adversely affect the rights of any
Bondholder.

Any other amendment or supplement to the Agreement or the terms of the Note may be
made only with the consent of the holders of at least a majority in aggregate principal amount of
the Bonds at the time outstanding.

THE TRUSTEE

The Company maintains deposit accounts and other normal banking relationships with the
Trustee and borrows from the Trustee from time to time. The Trustee serves as trustee under other
indentures providing for certain tax-exempt bonds for the benefit of the Company.

REMARKETING OF THE BONDS

Pursuant to a Remarketing Agreement (the “Remarketing Agreement”), U.S. Bancorp
Investments, Inc. and U.S. Bank Municipal Products Group, a division of U.S. Bank National
Association (the “Remarketing Agent”) have agreed, subject to certain conditions, to offer for sale
and use reasonable efforts to sell such Bonds at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount
thereof. In connection with the reoffering of the Bonds on the Conversion Date, the Company will
pay to the Remarketing Agent a fee for its services in an amount equal to $40,625. Following the
Conversion Date, and while the Bonds accrue interest at the Daily Rate or the Weekly Rate, the
Company will pay the Remarketing Agent an annual fee for its services as Remarketing Agent as
specified in the Remarketing Agreement. The Company has agreed to indemnify the Remarketing
Agent against certain civil liabilities, including liabilities under federal securities laws.

The Remarketing Agent may offer and sell the Bonds to certain dealers (including dealers
depositing the Bonds into investment trusts) and others at prices lower than the public offering
price stated on the cover page. After the reoffering, the public offering price may be changed from
time to time.

In connection with this reoffering and in compliance with applicable law and industry
practice, the Remarketing Agent may overallot or effect transactions which stabilize, maintain or
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otherwise affect the market price of the Bonds at |evel s above those which might otherwise prevail
in the open market, including by entering stabilizing bids. A stabilizing bid means the placing of
any bid, or the effecting of any purchase, for the purpose of pegging, fixing or maintaining the
price of a security. In general, purchases of a security for the purpose of stabilization could cause
the price of the security to be higher than it might be in the absence of such purchases.

Neither the Company nor the Remarketing Agent makes any representation or prediction
as to the direction or magnitude of any effect that the transactions described above may have on
the price of the Bonds. In addition, neither the Company nor the Remarketing Agent makes any
representation that the Remarketing Agent will engage in such transactions or that such
transactions, once commenced, will not be discontinued without notice.

The Remarketing Agent and its affiliates together comprise a full service financial
institution engaged in various activities, which may include securities trading, commercial and
investment banking, financial advisory, investment management, principal investment, hedging,
financing and brokerage activities. Such activities may involve or relate to assets, securities and/or
instruments of the County and/or the Company or its affiliates (whether directly, as collateral
securing other obligations or otherwise) and/or persons and entities with relationshipswith (or that
are otherwise involved with transactions by) the County and/or the Company.

The Remarketing Agent and its affiliates may have, from time to time, engaged, and may
in the future engage, in transactions with, and performed and may in the future perform, various
investment banking services for the County and/or the Company for which they received or will
receive customary fees and expenses. Under certain circumstances, the Remarketing Agent and its
affiliates may have certain creditor and/or other rights against the County and/or the Company and
any affiliates thereof in connection with such transactions and/or services. In addition, the
Remarketing Agent and its affiliates may currently have and may in the future have investment
and commercial banking, trust and other relationships with parties that may relate to assets of, or
be involved in the issuance of securities and/or instruments by, the County and/or the Company
and any affiliates thereof. The Remarketing Agent and its affiliates also may communicate
independent investment recommendations, market advice or trading ideas and/or publish or
express independent research views in respect of such assets, securities or instruments and at any
time may hold, or recommend to clients that they should acquire, long and/or short positions in
such assets, securities and instruments,

“US Bancorp” is the marketing name of U.S. Bancorp and its subsidiaries and affiliates,
including U.S. Bank Municipa Products Group, a division of U.S. Bank National Association
(*USB MPG"), which, along with U.S. Bancorp Investments, Inc. (“USBII"), is serving as the
Remarketing Agent for the Bonds, and U.S. Bank National Association (“USBNA”), which is
serving as Trustee, Registrar and Tender Agent for the Bonds.

SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONSRELATING TO THE BONDS
The Remarketing Agent is Paid by the Company

The Remarketing Agent’s responsibilities include determining the interest rate from time
to time and remarketing the Bonds that are optionally or mandatorily tendered by the owners
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thereof (subject, in each case, to the terms of the Indenture and the Remarketing Agreement), all
as further described in this Reoffering Circular. The Remarketing Agent is appointed by the
Company and is paid by the Company for itsservices. Asaresult, theinterests of the Remarketing
Agent may differ from those of existing holders and potentia purchasers of the Bonds.

The Remarketing Agent Routinely Purchases Bonds for its Own Account

The Remarketing Agent acts as remarketing agent for a variety of variable rate demand
obligations and, in its sole discretion, routinely purchases such obligations for its own account.
The Remarketing Agent is permitted, but not obligated, to purchase tendered Bonds for its own
account and, in its sole discretion, may routinely acquire such tendered Bonds in order to achieve
a successful remarketing of the Bonds (i.e., because there otherwise are not enough buyers to
purchase the Bonds) or for other reasons. However, the Remarketing Agent is not obligated to
purchase Bonds, and may cease doing so at any time without notice. The Remarketing Agent also
may make a market in the Bonds by routinely purchasing and selling Bonds other than in
connection with an optional or mandatory tender and remarketing. Such purchases and sales may
be at or below par. However, the Remarketing Agent is not required to make a market in the
Bonds. The Remarketing Agent also may sell any Bondsit has purchased to one or more affiliated
investment vehicles for collective ownership or enter into derivative arrangements with affiliates
or othersin order to reduce its exposure to the Bonds. The purchase of Bonds by the Remarketing
Agent may create the appearance that there is greater third party demand for the Bonds in the
market than is actually the case. The practices described above also may result in fewer Bonds
being tendered in a remarketing.

Bonds May be Offered at Different Prices on Any Date Including an Interest Rate
Deter mination Date

Pursuant to the Indenture and the Remarketing Agreement, the Remarketing Agent is
required to determine the applicable rate of interest that, in its judgment, is the lowest rate that
would permit the sale of the Bonds bearing interest at the applicableinterest rate at par plus accrued
interest, if any, on and as of the applicable interest rate determination date. The interest rate will
reflect, among other factors, the level of market demand for the Bonds (including whether the
Remarketing Agent is willing to purchase Bonds for its own account). There may or may not be
Bondstendered and remarketed on an interest rate determination date, the Remarketing Agent may
or may not be able to remarket any Bonds tendered for purchase on such date at par and the
Remarketing Agent may sell Bonds at varying prices to different investors on such date or any
other date. The Remarketing Agent isnot obligated to advise purchasersin aremarketing if it does
not have third party buyers for al of the Bonds at the remarketing price. In the event the
Remarketing Agent owns any Bonds for its own account, it may, in its sole discretion in a
secondary market transaction outside the tender process, offer such Bonds on any date, including
the interest rate determination date, at a discount to par to some investors.

The Ability to Sell the Bonds Other Than Through the Tender Process May Be Limited

The Remarketing Agent may buy and sell Bonds other than through the tender process.
However, it is not obligated to do so and may cease doing so at any time without notice and may
require holdersthat wish to tender their Bondsto do so through the Tender Agent with appropriate
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notice. Thus, investors who purchase the Bonds, whether in a remarketing or otherwise, should
not assume that they will be able to sell their Bonds other than by tendering the Bonds in
accordance with the tender process.

Under Certain Circumstances, the Remarketing Agent May Be Removed, Resign or Cease
Remarketing the Bonds, Without a Successor Being Named

Under certain circumstances, the Remarketing Agent may be removed or have the ability
to resign or cease its remarketing efforts, without a successor having been named, subject to the
terms of the Indenture and the Remarketing Agreement.

TAX MATTERS

On the date of original issuance of the Bonds, Former Bond Counsel delivered its opinion
to the effect that interest on the Bonds, as of the date of such opinion, was not includable in gross
income for federal income tax purposes under existing statutes, rulings and court decisions, and
under applicable regulations and proposed regulations, except for interest on any Bond for any
period during which such Bond is held by a“substantial user” of the Project or a“related person”
within the meaning of Section 147(a) of the Code. In addition, the opinion of Former Bond Counsel
as of such date stated that in the opinion of Former Bond Counsel, the interest on the Bonds would
not be treated as an item of tax preference for purposes of calculating the federal alternative
minimum tax imposed on individuals and corporations and would not be taken into account in
determining adjusted current earnings for purposes of computing the alternative minimum tax
imposed on corporations. No opinion was expressed with respect to any other federa tax
consequences of the receipt of or accrual of interest on, or ownership of, the Bonds.

Former Bond Counsel has not undertaken to notify the County, the Trustee, the Company,
the Remarketing Agent or the owners of the Bonds of any change in law or fact after the date of
such opinion which might affect any of the opinions expressed therein.

Bond Counsel has not undertaken any investigation since the date of original issuance of
the Bonds as to the use of proceeds of the Bonds or the use or function of the facilities financed
thereby, or as to compliance by the Company or the County with their obligations under the
Indenture, the Agreement, the tax and non-arbitrage certification relating to the Bonds or any other
document executed in connection with the original issuance of the Bonds. Bond Counsel will
express no opinion as to the exclusion of interest on the Bonds from gross income for federal or
state income tax purposes except as described herein, or regarding any other federal or stateincome
tax consequences caused by the receipt or accrual of interest on, or ownership of, the Bonds.

On November 19, 2020, Bond Counsel will deliver to the Trustee an opinion to the effect
that, based upon the assumptions and subject to the limitations described therein, conversion of
the interest rate on the Bonds to a Daily Interest Rate in accordance with the provisions of the
Indenture is permitted by the Indenture and the laws of the State of Florida and will not, by itself,
adversely affect any exclusion from gross income of the interest on the Bonds for federal income
tax purposes.

Ownership of the Bonds may result in other collateral federal income tax consequences to
certain taxpayers, including, without limitation, banks, thrift institutions and other financial
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ingtitutions, foreign corporations which conduct a trade or business in the United States, property
and casualty insurance corporations, S corporations, individual recipients of socia security or
railroad retirement benefits and taxpayers who may be deemed to have incurred or continued
indebtedness to purchase or carry the Bonds. Purchasers of the Bonds should consult their tax
advisors as to the applicability of any such collateral consequences.

From time to time, there are legislative proposals in Congress that, if enacted, could cause
interest on the Bonds to be subject, directly or indirectly, to federal income taxation, adversely
affect the market value of the Bonds or otherwise prevent owners of the Bonds from realizing the
full current benefit of the tax status of such interest. It cannot be predicted whether or in what form
any such proposal might be enacted or whether, if enacted, such legislation would apply to bonds
issued prior to enactment. Purchasers of the Bonds should consult their tax advisors regarding the
effect of any such legislation. The opinions expressed by Former Bond Counsel are based upon
existing legidation and regulations as interpreted by relevant judicial and regulatory authorities as
of the date of issuance and delivery of the Bonds, and neither Former Bond Counsel nor Bond
Counsel have expressed an opinion with respect to any proposed legislation or as to the tax
treatment of interest on the Bonds, or as to the consequences of owning or receiving interest on
the Bonds, as of any future date. Neither Former Bond Counsel nor Bond Counsel has agreed to
notify the County or the owners of the Bonds as to any event subsequent to the issuance or
reoffering of the Bonds that might affect the tax treatment of interest on the Bonds, the market
value of the Bonds or the consequences of owning or receiving interest on the Bonds.

The foregoing discussion is a general discussion of certain federal and state income tax
consequences with respect to the Bonds and does not purport to deal with all tax questions that
may be relevant to particular investors or circumstances, including purchasers of Bonds in the
secondary market at a price other than the stated redemption price at maturity. Owners of Bonds
should consult their own tax advisors with respect to such matters and with respect to the state and
local tax consequences of any discount with respect to the Bonds.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

Solely for the purpose of enabling the Remarketing Agent to comply with the requirements
of Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5) (the “Rule”), the Company has undertaken (but only to the extent required
for compliance with valid and effective provisions of the Rule) pursuant to an Amended and
Restated 15¢2-12 Undertaking attached hereto as Appendix E, for the benefit of the Bondholders,
to provide to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board under its Electronic Municipal Market
Access System (“EMMA”) either a copy, or notice of the filing of the following with the
Commission of: (i) not later than 120 days after the end of each fiscal year of the Company, the
audited annual financia statements of the Company of the type included in Appendix B to this
Reoffering Circular, or, if the Company has filed an annual report with the Commission on Form
10-K (or any successor form), the Form 10-K; and (ii) in atimely manner, notice of the occurrence
of certain events enumerated in the Rule (the “ Company’ s Undertaking”).

Neither the County nor its members, officers or employees have any responsibility or
liability for the sufficiency, performance or enforcement of the Company’s Undertaking. The
Company and its directors, officers, employees and shareholders shall have no liability under the
Company’s Undertaking for any act or falure to act; a failure to perform the Company’s
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Undertaking shall not constitute an Event of Default under the Agreement, an event of default
under the Indenture or a default under the Note or any Bond; and the sole remedy shall be specific
enforcement of the Company’ s Undertaking by the Trustee or by such persons, if any, asthe Rule
may require to be entitled to enforce the same. The Company reserves the right to (a) contest the
validity of the Rule and (b) modify its performance of the Company’s Undertaking, to the extent
not inconsistent with valid and effective provisions of the Rule.

The Company is currently a party to numerous continuing disclosure undertakings
(“Existing Undertakings’) with respect to revenue bonds issued through various municipal
authorities on behalf of the Company, some of which provide for audited financial statements to
be posted within 100 days of the end of the fiscal year while other undertakings providefor posting
within 120 days of the end of the fiscal year. The audited financial statements for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2019 were filed late. The Company posted a “failure to file” notice with
respect to those prior undertakingsthat provided for an earlier filing date. Dueto an administrative
oversight, the Company inadvertently disclosed the audited financial statementsfor the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2019 as well as two increases to the Company’ s ratings under prior CUSIP
numbersfor three series of bonds rather than the current CUSIP numbers for such bonds. This has
been rectified, such that the audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2019 and the notice of the rating increases are now associated with the current CUSIP numbers.
The Company has established internal procedures and controls, which are designed to provide
reasonable assurance for future compliance with the Existing Undertakings and the Continuing
Disclosure Undertaking for the Bonds.

LEGAL MATTERS

The obligation of the Remarketing Agent to purchase the Bonds is subject to the issuance
of the opinion of Nabors, Giblin & Nickerson P.A., as Bond Counsel, with respect thereto as
described herein under “TAX MATTERS.” Certain legal matters, other than the validity of the
Bonds and the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes of interest thereon,
will be passed upon for the Company by its counsel, Liebler, Gonzalez & Portuondo and Morgan,
Lewis & Bockius LLP, and for the Remarketing Agent by its counsel, Ballard Spahr LLP.

MISCELLANEOUS

Certain information relating to the business and properties of the Company isincluded in
Appendix A to this Reoffering Circular, and the Company’s audited financial statements for the
years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 and unaudited financial statements for the quarterly
periods ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 are included as Appendix B, to which reference is hereby
made.
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APPENDIX A

GULF POWER COMPANY

Gulf Power Company (the “Company”) is a rate-regulated electric utility under the
jurisdiction of the Florida Public Service Commission engaged in the generation, transmission,
distribution and sale of electric energy in northwest Florida. As of December 31, 2019, the
Company served approximately 470,000 customers in eight counties throughout northwest Florida
and had approximately 2,300 MW of fossil-fueled electric net generating capacity and 9,500 miles
of transmission and distribution lines located primarily in Florida.

On January 1, 2019, NextEra Energy, Inc. (“NextEra”) acquired all of the outstanding
common shares of the Company from The Southern Company, which resulted in the Company
becoming a wholly-owned subsidiary of NextEra. The Company was incorporated under the laws
of Maine in 1925, and became a Florida corporation after being domesticated under the laws of
Florida in 2005. The principal executive offices of the Company are located at 500 Bayfront
Parkway, Pensacola, Florida 32502, and the telephone number is 850-444-6000. The payment of
the loan payments which secure the Bonds are the sole responsibility of the Company and not an
obligation of NextEra.

The Company is not currently subject to the informational requirements of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Nevertheless, the Company has undertaken to provide certain
information to Electronic Municipal Market Access System as described in the 15c2-12
Undertaking described in the Reoffering Circular.

On October 15, 2020, the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission approved an application
filed by NextEra, Florida Power and Light Company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of NextEra
(“FPL™), and the Company, to merge the Company with and into FPL, with FPL as the surviving
entity effective January 1, 2021. The Company will continue as a separate operating division of
FPL during 2021, serving its existing customers under separate retail rates.

Information about the Company, including its business and certain regulatory matters, are
described in the Notes to the Company Financial Statements included herein as Appendix B.
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Deloitte & Touche LLP
Certified Public Accountants
Suite 200

1800 North Military Trail
Boca Raton, FL 33431-6386
USA

Tel: +1 561 962 7700
Fax: +1 561 962 7750
www.deloitte.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Gulf Power Company
One Energy Place
Pensacola, FL

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Gulf Power Company (the "Company"),
which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the related statements of
income, common shareholder’s equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes
to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Gulf Power Company as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

April 22, 2020
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GULF POWER COMPANY
STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended December 31,

2019 2018
(millions)
Operating Revenues $ 1,487 $ 1,465
Operating Expenses:
Fuel, purchased power and interchange 547 598
Other operations and maintenance 279 356
Acquisition-related 27 —
Depreciation and amortization 247 191
Taxes other than income taxes and other - net 116 118
Total operating expenses 1,216 1,263
Operating Income 271 202
Other Income (Expense):
Interest expense, net of amounts capitalized (55) (53)
Other income (expense) - net 6 9)
Total other income (expense) - net (49) (62)
Income Before Income Taxes 222 140
Income Tax Expense (Benefit) 42 (20)
Net Income® $ 180 $ 160
(a) Gulf Power's comprehensive income is the same as reported net income.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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GULF POWER COMPANY
BALANCE SHEETS

PROPERTY, PLANT and EQUIPMENT
Electric plant in service and other property
Construction work in progress
Accumulated depreciation and amortization

Total property, plant and equipment - net

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Customer receivables, net of allowances of $1 and $1, respectively
Materials, supplies and fossil fuel inventory
Regulatory assets
Other

Total current assets

OTHER ASSETS
Regulatory assets
Other assets

Total other assets

TOTALASSETS

CAPITALIZATION

Common stock (authorized shares - 10,000,000, $0.01 par value and 20,000,000, no par
value, respectively; outstanding shares - 7,392,717)

Additional paid-in capital

Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Total common shareholder's equity
Long-term debt
Total capitalization

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Commercial Paper

Other short-term debt

Current portion of long-term debt

Accounts payable

Customer deposits

Accrued interest and taxes

Regulatory liabilities

Other

Total current liabilities

OTHER LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED CREDITS

Asset retirement obligations

Deferred income taxes

Regulatory liabilities

Other

Total other liabilities and deferred credits

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
TOTAL CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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December 31,

2019 2018

(millions)
5616 $ 5,391
765 199
(1,629) (1,543)
4,752 4,047
6 9
143 133
127 128
124 79
52 19
452 368
425 732
229 41
654 773
5858 § 5,188
678 $ 678
1,013 978
26 265
(1) (1)
1,716 1,920
1,510 1,286
3,226 3,206
192 —
200 —
175 —
301 222
34 34
29 26
25 50
173 95
1,129 427
113 123
626 622
527 589
237 221
1,503 1,655
5858 $ 5,188
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GULF POWER COMPANY
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31,

2019 2018
(millions)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 180 $ 160
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 247 189
Other amortization 3 8
Deferred income taxes — 3
Cost recovery clauses and franchise fees (23) 62
Recoverable storm-related costs (180) (157)
Other - net (7) —
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Current assets (16) 5
Noncurrent assets 78 3
Current liabilities 41 47
Noncurrent liabilities (5) 7)
Net cash provided by operating activities 318 313
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditures (729) (389)
Other - net — 11)
Net cash used in investing activities (729) (400)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issuances of long-term debt 505 —
Retirements of long-term debt (105) —
Capital contributions from parent company 100 267
Net change in commercial paper 192 (45)
Proceeds from other short-term debt 200 —
Dividends on common stock (420) (153)
Other - net (1) (1)
Net cash provided by financing activities 471 68
Net increase (decrease) in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash 60 (19)
Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash at beginning of period 9 28
Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash at end of period $ 69 $ 9
Supplemental Cash Flow Information:
Cash paid for interest (net of amount capitalized) $ 52 $ 50
Cash paid (received) for income taxes - net $ 40 $ (29)
Noncash transactions:
Accrued property additions $ 234 % 26
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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GULF POWER COMPANY
STATEMENTS OF COMMON SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY

Number of Accumulated
Common Other
Shares Common Paid-In Retained Comprehensive
Issued Stock Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Total
(millions)

Balance at December 31, 2017 7 9 678 $ 594 $ 259 $ — 3 1,531
Net Income — — — 160 — 160
Capital contributions from parent — — 384 — — 384
Cash dividends on common stock — — — (153) — (153)
Other — — — (1) (1 2)

Balance at December 31, 2018 7 678 978 265 (1 1,920
Net Income — — — 180 — 180
Capital contributions from parent — — 100 — — 100
Derecognition of benefit liabilities — — (65) — — (65)
Cash dividends on common stock — — — (420) — (420)
Other — — — 1 — 1

Balance at December 31, 2019 7 % 678 $ 1,013 § 26 $ 1) $ 1,716

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
6
Gulf 000077

20200151-El



GULF POWER COMPANY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General

Gulf Power Company (Gulf Power) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of NextEra Energy, Inc. (NextEra Energy). Prior to January 1, 2019,
Gulf Power was a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Southern Company (Southern Company). Gulf Power provides electric service
to retail customers in northwest Florida and to wholesale customers in the Southeast United States.

Gulf Power is subject to regulation by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) and the Florida Public Service Commission
(FPSC). As such, Gulf Power's financial statements reflect the effects of rate regulation in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) and comply with the accounting policies and practices prescribed by its regulatory commissions. The
preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the use of estimates, and the actual results may differ from
those estimates. Certain amounts included in prior years' financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the current
year's presentation.

Affiliate Transactions

During 2019, certain services were provided to Gulf Power by Florida Power & Light Company (FPL), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of NextEra Energy, at direct or allocated fully loaded cost. Corporate support services provided by FPL primarily include corporate
governance, accounting, financial, consulting, human resources systems and programs, education and training, legal, payroll,
management and administrative, computer services, software maintenance and license fees. Other services provided by FPLinclude
business operations, engineering and construction, development, customer service and information technology. Charges for these
services are billed to Gulf Power in accordance with FPL’s policy and amounted to approximately $101 million for the year ended
December 31, 2019, of which $33 million are included in other operations and maintenance expenses and $68 million were
capitalized. NextEra Energy and certain of its other subsidiaries also provided services to Gulf Power during 2019 primarily related
to a new customer information system. The charges for these services totaled approximately $32 million, of which $29 million were
capitalized.

During 2018, certain services were provided to Gulf Power by Southern Company, which was the parent company of Gulf Power
through December 31, 2018, and certain of its subsidiaries. Services provided by Southern Company at direct or allocated fully
loaded cost primarily included general and design engineering, operations, purchasing, accounting, finance and treasury, tax,
information technology, marketing, auditing, insurance and pension administration, human resources, systems and procedures,
digital wireless communications, and other services with respect to business and operations, construction management, transmission
system upgrades, purchased power and transactions under agreements to operate certain generating resources (Southern
Company power pool). Costs for these services amounted to approximately $161 million for the year ended December 31, 2018,
of which $109 million are included in other operations and maintenance expenses and $52 million were capitalized.

In 2018, Gulf Power provided incidental services to and received such services from certain Southern Company subsidiaries which
are generally minor in duration and amount. However, Gulf Power received storm restoration assistance from certain Southern
Company subsidiaries totaling approximately $44 million in 2018. See Property Damage Reserve below for additional information
on Hurricane Michael impacts.

Rate Regulation

Gulf Power is subject to rate regulation by the FPSC and the FERC. Its rates are designed to recover the cost of providing service
to its customers including a reasonable rate of return on invested capital. As a result of this cost-based regulation, Gulf Power follows
the accounting guidance that allows regulators to create assets and impose liabilities that would not be recorded by non-rate
regulated entities. Regulatory assets represent probable future revenues associated with certain costs that are expected to be
recovered from customers through the ratemaking process. Regulatory liabilities represent probable future reductions in revenues
associated with amounts that are expected to be credited to customers through the ratemaking process.
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GULF POWER COMPANY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Regulatory assets and (liabilities) reflected in the balance sheets relate to:

December 31,

2019 2018
(millions)
Regulatory Assets:
Current:
Storm reserve $ 68 $ 34
Other 56 45
Total $ 124§ 79
Noncurrent:
Storm reserve $ 140 $ 221
Retiree benefits — 160
Other 285 351
Total $ 425 $ 732
Regulatory Liabilities:
Current:
Deferred clause $ 25 § 48
Other — 2
Total $ 25 $ 50
Noncurrent:
Deferred income taxes $ 361 $ 374
Other cost of removal obligations 166 211
Other — 4
Total $ 527 $ 589

Cost recovery clauses, which are designed to permit full recovery of certain costs and provide a return on certain assets allowed
to be recovered through various clauses, include substantially all fuel, purchased power and interchange expense, and conservation
and certain environmental - related costs. Revenues from cost recovery clauses are recorded when billed. Gulf achieves matching
of costs and related revenues by deferring the net underrecovery or overrecovery. Any underrecovered costs or overrecovered
revenues are collected from or returned to customers in subsequent periods.

If Gulf Power were no longer subject to cost-based rate regulation, the existing regulatory assets and liabilities would be written off
unless regulators specify an alternative means of recovery or refund. In addition, the FPSC has the authority to disallow recovery
of costs that it considers excessive or imprudently incurred and the FERC has similar authority for costs included in wholesale rates.
The continued applicability of regulatory accounting is assessed at each reporting period.

Retail Base Rates

In April 2017, the FPSC approved the 2017 Rate Case Settlement Agreement among Gulf Power and three intervenors (2017 Rate
Case Settlement Agreement) with respect to Gulf Power's request in 2016 to increase retail base rates. Among the terms of the
2017 Rate Case Settlement Agreement, Gulf Power increased rates effective with the first billing cycle in July 2017 to provide an
annual overall net customer impact of approximately $54.3 million. The net customer impact consisted of a $62.0 million increase
in annual base revenues, less an annual purchased power capacity cost recovery clause credit for certain wholesale revenues of
approximately $8 million through December 2019. In addition, Gulf Power continued its authorized retail return on equity midpoint
(10.25%) and range (9.25% to 11.25%), was deemed to have a maximum equity ratio of 52.5% for all retail regulatory purposes,
and implemented new dismantlement accruals effective July 1, 2017. Gulf Power also began amortizing the regulatory asset
associated with the investment balances remaining after the retirement of Plant Smith Units 1 and 2 (357 megawatts) over 15 years
effective January 1, 2018 and implemented new depreciation rates effective January 1, 2018.
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GULF POWER COMPANY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

As a continuation of the 2017 Rate Case Settlement Agreement, in March 2018, the FPSC approved a stipulation and settlement
agreement among Gulf Power and three intervenors addressing the retail revenue requirement effects of the Tax Reform Legislation
(Tax Reform Settlement Agreement). The Tax Reform Settlement Agreement resulted in an annual reduction to Gulf Power's revenues
of $18.2 million from base rates and $15.6 million from environmental cost recovery rates beginning April 1, 2018 and also provided
for a one-time refund of $69.4 million for the retail portion of unprotected (not subject to normalization) deferred tax liabilities through
a reduced fuel cost recovery rate over the remainder of 2018. As a result of the Tax Reform Settlement Agreement, the FPSC also
approved an increase in Gulf Power's maximum equity ratio from 52.5% to 53.5% for all retail regulatory purposes.

In October 2018, the FPSC approved a $9.6 million annual reduction in base rate revenues effective January 2019 following a
limited scope proceeding in connection with the Tax Reform Settlement Agreement to address protected deferred tax liabilities
consistent with Internal Revenue Service (IRS) normalization principles. At December 31, 2018, Gulf Power had approximately $8
million related to 2018 tax benefits which was refunded to retail customers during 2019 through the fuel clause.

Operating Revenues

Approximately 85% of the revenues of Gulf Power are generated from contracts with retail electric customers, the majority of which
are residential customers. These revenues, generated from the integrated service to deliver electricity when and if called upon by
the customer, are recognized as a single performance obligation satisfied over time, at a tariff rate, and as electricity is delivered
to the customer during the month. Unbilled revenues related to retail sales are accrued at the end of each fiscal period. Retail rates
may include provisions to adjust billings for fluctuations in fuel costs, the energy component of purchased power costs, and certain
other costs. Gulf Power continuously monitors the over or under recovered fuel cost balance in light of the inherent variability in
fuel costs. Gulf Power is required to notify the FPSC if the projected fuel cost over or under recovery is expected to exceed 10%
of the projected fuel revenue applicable for the period and indicate if an adjustment to the fuel cost recovery factor is being requested.
Gulf Power has similar retail costrecovery clauses for energy conservation costs, purchased power capacity costs, and environmental
compliance costs. Revenues are adjusted for differences between these actual costs and amounts billed in current regulated rates.
Under or over recovered regulatory clause revenues are recorded in the balance sheets and are recovered from or returned to
customers, respectively, through adjustments to the billing factors. Annually, Gulf Power petitions for recovery of projected costs
including any true-up amounts from prior periods, and approved rates are implemented each January. See Rate Regulation above
for additional information regarding regulatory matters of Gulf Power.

Wholesale capacity revenues from power purchase agreements (PPA) are recognized either on a levelized basis over the appropriate
contract period or the amount billable under the contract terms. Energy and other revenues are generally recognized as services
are provided. The contracts for capacity and energy in a wholesale PPA have multiple performance obligations where the contract's
total transaction price is allocated to each performance obligation based on the standalone selling price. The standalone selling
price is primarily determined by the price charged to customers for the specific goods or services transferred with the performance
obligations. Gulf Power recognizes revenue as the performance obligations are satisfied over time, as electricity is delivered to the
customer, or as generation capacity is available to the customer.

For both retail and wholesale revenues, Gulf Power generally has a right to consideration in an amount that corresponds directly
with the value to the customer of the entity's performance completed to date and may recognize revenue in the amount to which
the entity has a right to invoice and has elected to recognize revenue for its sales of electricity and capacity using the invoice practical
expedient. In addition, payment for goods and services rendered is typically due in the subsequent month following satisfaction of
Gulf Power's performance obligation.

Fuel Costs

Fuel costs are expensed as the fuel is used. Fuel expense generally includes fuel transportation costs and the cost of purchased
emissions allowances as they are used. Fuel expense and emissions allowance costs are recovered by Gulf Power through the
fuel cost recovery and environmental cost recovery rates, respectively, approved annually by the FPSC.

Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes are recognized on all significant temporary differences between the financial statement and tax basis of
assets and liabilities, and are presented as noncurrent on Gulf Power's balance sheets. Gulf Power recognizes investment tax
credits as a reduction to income tax expense over the depreciable life of the related energy property.

All tax positions taken by Gulf Power in its income tax returns that are recognized in the financial statements must satisfy a more-
likely-than-not threshold.
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GULF POWER COMPANY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Property Plant and Equipment

Property, plant, and equipment is stated at original cost less any regulatory disallowances and impairments. Original cost includes
materials, labor, minor items of property, appropriate administrative and general costs, payroll-related costs such as taxes, pensions,
and other benefits, and the interest capitalized and cost of equity funds used during construction.

Gulf Power's utility plant in service consisted of the following:

December 31,

2019 2018
(millions)
Generation $ 3,126 $ 3,064
Transmission 784 737
Distribution 1,466 1,385
General 232 204
Plant Acquisition Adjustment 1 1
Total Plant in Service $ 5,609 $ 5,391

The cost of replacements of property, exclusive of minor items of property, is capitalized. The cost of maintenance, repairs, and
replacement of minor items of property is charged to other operations and maintenance expenses as incurred or performed.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation of the original cost of utility plant in service is provided primarily by using composite straight-line rates, which averaged
3.7% for all years presented. Depreciation studies are conducted periodically to update the composite rates. These studies are
approved by the FPSC and the FERC. When property, plant, and equipment subject to composite depreciation is retired or otherwise
disposed of in the normal course of business, its original cost, together with the cost of removal, less salvage, is charged to
accumulated depreciation. For other property dispositions, the applicable cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the
balance sheet accounts, and a gain or loss is recognized. Minor items of property included in the original cost of the asset are retired
when the related property unit is retired.

Asset Retirement Obligations and Other Costs of Removal

Asset retirement obligations (AROs) are computed as the present value of the estimated costs for an asset's future retirement and
are recorded in the period in which the liability is incurred. The estimated costs are capitalized as part of the related long-lived asset
and depreciated over the asset's useful life. In the absence of quoted market prices, AROs are estimated using present value
techniques in which estimates of future cash outlays associated with the asset retirements are discounted using a credit-adjusted
risk-free rate. Estimates of the timing and amounts of future cash outlays are based on projections of when and how the assets will
be retired and the cost of future removal activities. Gulf Power has received an order from the FPSC allowing the continued accrual
of other future retirement costs for long-lived assets that Gulf Power does not have a legal obligation to retire. Accordingly, the
accumulated removal costs for these obligations are reflected in the balance sheets as a regulatory liability.

The liability for AROs primarily relates to facilities that are subject to the Disposal of Coal Combustion Residuals from Electric Utilities
final rule published by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) in 2015 (CCR Rule), primarily ash ponds.

Gulf Power will continue to recognize in the statements of income allowed removal costs in accordance with its regulatory treatment.
Any differences between costs recognized in accordance with accounting standards related to asset retirement and environmental
obligations and those reflected in rates are recognized as either a regulatory asset or liability, as ordered by the FPSC, and are
reflected in the balance sheets.
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GULF POWER COMPANY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Details of the AROs included on the balance sheets are as follows:

December 31,

2019 2018
(millions)

Balance at beginning of year $ 169 $ 142
Liabilities settled (18) (32)
Accretion 3 2
Cash flow revisions (10) @ 57 ®

Balance at end of year'® $ 144 $ 169

(a) Primarily reflects a project revision relating to wastewater, offset by increase for additional estimated ash pond closing costs.

(b) Primarily relates to AROs subject to the CCR Rule and includes an increase of approximately $46 million and $15 million for additional estimated ash pond closure
costs at Plant Smith and Plant Scherer Unit 3, respectively, offset by a $4 million decrease related to the closure of an ash pond at Plant Scholz.

(c) Includes the current portion of AROs of approximately $31 million and $46 million, respectively, which is included in other current liabilities on the balance sheets.

Gulf Power has identified but not recognized ARO liabilities related to certain transmission and distribution assets, certain wireless
communication towers and certain structures authorized by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers resulting from easements over
property not owned by Gulf Power. These easements are generally perpetual and only require retirement action upon abandonment
or cessation of use of the property or facility for its specified purpose. The related ARO liability is not estimable for such easements
as Gulf Power intends to use these properties indefinitely. In the event Gulf Power decides to abandon or cease the use of a particular
easement, an ARO liability would be recorded at that time.

Allowance for Funds Used During Construction

Gulf Power records allowance for funds used during construction (AFUDC), which represents the estimated debt and equity costs
of capital funds that are necessary to finance the construction of new regulated facilities. While cash is not realized currently, AFUDC
increases the revenue requirement and is recovered over the service life of the asset through a higher rate base and higher
depreciation. The equity component of AFUDC is not taxable.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Intangibles

Gulf Power evaluates long-lived assets for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
of such assets may not be recoverable. The determination of whether an impairment has occurred is based on either a specific
regulatory disallowance or an estimate of undiscounted future cash flows attributable to the assets, as compared with the carrying
value of the assets. If an impairment has occurred, the amount of the impairment recognized is determined by either the amount
of regulatory disallowance or by estimating the fair value of the assets and recording a loss if the carrying value is greater than the
fair value. For assets identified as held for sale, the carrying value is compared to the estimated fair value less the cost to sell in
order to determine if an impairment loss is required. Until the assets are disposed of, their estimated fair value is re-evaluated when
circumstances or events change. As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, Gulf Power concluded no impairment adjustments were
necessary.

Property Damage Reserve

Gulf Power accrues for the cost of repairing damages from major storms and other uninsured property damages, including uninsured
damages to transmission and distribution facilities, generation facilities, and other property. The costs of such damage are charged
to the reserve. The FPSC approved annual accrual to the property damage reserve is $3.5 million, with a target level for the reserve
between $48 million and $55 million. In accordance with the 2017 Rate Case Settliement Agreement, Gulf Power suspended further
property damage reserve accruals effective April 2017. Gulf Power may make discretionary accruals and is required to resume
accruals of $3.5 million annually if the reserve falls below zero. During 2019, the reserve fell below zero due to damages incurred
and subsequent restoration related to Hurricane Michael (see discussion of Hurricane Michael below) and, as such, Gulf Power
resumed accruals at the approved annual rate of $3.5 million in 2019. Gulf Power accrued total expenses of $3.5 million in 2019
and $28.2 million in 2018. As of December 31, 2019, Gulf Power's property damage reserve had a deficit balance of approximately
$208 million, of which $68 million and $140 million are included in current regulatory assets and noncurrent regulatory assets,
respectively, on the balance sheet. As of December 31, 2018, Gulf Power's property damage reserve had a deficit balance of
approximately $255 million, of which $34 million and $221 million are included in current regulatory assets and noncurrent regulatory
assets, respectively, on the balance sheet.
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GULF POWER COMPANY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

When the property damage reserve is inadequate to cover the cost of major storms, the FPSC can authorize a storm cost recovery
surcharge to be applied to customer bills. As authorized in the 2017 Rate Case Settlement Agreement, Gulf Power may initiate a
storm surcharge to recover costs associated with any tropical systems named by the National Hurricane Center or other catastrophic
storm events that reduce the property damage reserve in the aggregate by approximately $31 million (75% of the April 1, 2017
balance) or more. The storm surcharge would begin, on an interim basis, 60 days following the filing of a cost recovery petition,
would be limited to $4.00/month for a 1,000 kilowatt-hour residential customer unless Gulf Power incurs in excess of $100 million
in qualified storm recovery costs in a calendar year, and would replenish the property damage reserve to approximately $40 million.

In October 2018, Hurricane Michael made landfall on the Gulf Coast of Florida causing substantial damage in Gulf Power's service
territory. As authorized in the 2017 Rate Case Settlement Agreement, in February 2019, Gulf Power filed a petition with the FPSC
requesting to recover approximately $342 million from its retail customers through a storm surcharge, which would also replenish
the property damage reserve to approximately $41 million. In May 2019, the FPSC approved an interim surcharge from Gulf Power
customers to recover costs of restoring power and rebuilding the grid following Hurricane Michael, as well as to replenish the property
damage reserve to approximately $41 million. On November 15, 2019, Gulf Power filed a petition with the FPSC establishing final
Hurricane Michael cost recovery amounts of approximately $296 million. The ultimate outcome of this matter cannot be determined
at this time. During 2019, Gulf Power collected approximately $41 million from customers through the storm surcharge.

Long-Term Service Agreement

Gulf Power has entered into a long-term service agreement (LTSA) for the purpose of securing maintenance support for a combined
cycle generating unit at Plant Smith. The LTSA covers all planned inspections on the covered equipment, which generally includes
the cost of all labor and materials. The LTSA also obligates the counterparty to cover the costs of unplanned maintenance on the
covered equipment subject to limits and scope specified in the contract.

Payments made under the LTSA for the performance of any planned inspections or unplanned capital maintenance are recorded
in the statements of cash flows as investing activities. Receipts of major parts into materials and supplies inventory prior to planned
inspections are treated as non-cash transactions in the statements of cash flows. Any payment made prior to the work being
performed is recorded as a noncurrent asset on the balance sheets. At the time work is performed, an appropriate amount is
transferred and recorded as property, plant, and equipment or expensed.

Cash Equivalents
Cash equivalents consist of short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.
Restricted Cash

At December 31, 2019, Gulf Power had approximately $63 million of restricted cash, of which approximately $30 million is included
in current other assets and the remaining balance is included in noncurrent other assets on the balance sheets. Restricted cash is
related to bond proceeds held for construction.

Materials and Supplies

Materials and supplies generally includes the average cost of transmission, distribution, and generating plant materials. Materials
are recorded to inventory when purchased and then expensed or capitalized to plant, as appropriate, at weighted average cost
when installed.

Fuel Inventory

Fuel inventory includes the average cost of oil, natural gas, coal, transportation, and emissions allowances. Fuel is recorded to
inventory when purchased and then expensed, at weighted average cost, as used. Fuel expense and emissions allowance costs
are recovered by Gulf Power through the fuel cost recovery and environmental cost recovery rates, respectively, approved annually
by the FPSC. Emissions allowances granted by the EPA are included in inventory at zero cost.

Financial Instruments

Gulf Power uses derivative financial instruments to limit exposure to fluctuations in interest rates, the prices of certain fuel purchases,
and electricity purchases and sales. All derivative financial instruments are recognized as either assets or liabilities on the balance
sheets and are measured at fair value. See Note 6 for additional information regarding fair value. Substantially all of Gulf Power's
bulk energy purchases and sales contracts that meet the definition of a derivative are excluded from fair value accounting
requirements because they qualify for the "normal" scope exception, and are accounted for under the accrual method. Derivative
contracts that qualify as cash flow hedges of anticipated transactions or are recoverable through the FPSC approved fuel-hedging
program result in the deferral of related gains and losses in AOCI or regulatory assets and liabilities, respectively, until the hedged
transactions occur.

12

Gulf 000083
20200151-El





